
MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
JANUARY 14, 2025

6 P.M.
AGENDA

1. Call to order and welcome by Chairman Young

2. Announcements

3. Moment of Silence

4. Pledge of Allegiance

5. Public Hearing(s) – None

6. Public Comment Period

7. Additions to agenda

8. Adjustments to and approval of the agenda

9. Reports/Presentations - None

10.  Old Business
(A) Update of Highlands School Project – Project Manager Jack Morgan and 
      Representatives from Vannoy Construction
(B)  Approval of Resolution Accepting Bid and Authorizing Sale of Surplus 

Real Property Located at 88 No Name Road in Franklin – Attorney Eric 
Ridenour

(C)  Consideration of Surplus Property Offer for Property Located at 651 
East Main Street – Attorney Ridenour

(D) Discussion Concerning Animal Services Operation – Interim County 
Manager Cabe

(E) Update on Recruitment of County Manager – Human Resource Director 
Tammy Keezer



 

 
 
 

11. New Business 
 (A)   Discussion and Approval of Bid Package for Phase IA of the Recreation 

Master Plan – Mike Norris, McGill Associates  
(B) Discussion Regarding Clock Tower Renovation and Acceptance of  
  Bid – Project Manager, Jack Morgan 
(C) Update on Macon Early College Assessment – Mr. Morgan 
(D) Discussion Regarding Update to Rule 11 of the Macon County Board 

of Commissioners Rules of Procedures – Attorney Ridenour 
(E) Scheduling Annual Performance Review for the County Manager  
  and the County Attorney – Chairman Young 

 

12. Consent Agenda – Attachment #12 
 All items below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  No separate 

discussion will be held except on request of a member of the Board of Commissioners. 
(A) Minutes of the December 10, 2024, Regular Meeting 
(B) Budget Amendments  #159-164 
(C) Tax releases for the month of December 2024 in the amount of 

$991.60 
(D) Monthly ad valorem tax collection report – no action necessary 

 
13. Appointments 
 (A)    Macon County Library Board of Trustees – 1 seat 
 
14. Closed session as allowed under NCGS 143-318.11 
 
15. Adjourn/Recess 



MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
CATEGORY – OLD BUSINESS 

 
 
MEETING DATE:  JANUARY 14, 2025  
 
10(A).     Representatives from Vannoy Construction will be present to 
provide an update on the Highlands School project.  Project Manager Jack 
Morgan has asked Vannoy to provide an update to the board every other 
month until the project is complete. 
 
 
10(B).   The upset bid period for suplus real property located at 88 No Name 
Road closed on December 30, 2024.  No additional bids were received.  
Included in your packet for approval is a resolution accepting the bid and 
authorizing sale of the property. 
 
10(C).      An Offer to Purchase Agreement and deposit have been received 
to purchase the property located at 651 East Main Street. Franklin, NC.  
Action is needed to accept this offer and enter into the upset bid period.  
Attorney Ridenour can provide more information about the offer and the 
upset bid process at the meeting. . 
 
10(D).       Mr. Cabe has requested to have follow up discussion regarding 
Animal Services operations and options suggested at the December 10, 
2024, regular meeting. 
 
10(E).  Ms. Keezer will provide an update on recruitment efforts. 
 
 
         



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF MACON 

 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING BID AND AUTHORIZING SALE OF 

SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY – TAX PARCELS 6553850133 and 65553850151 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 10, 2024, the Macon County Board of Commissioners 
approved a motion authorizing the sale through the upset bid procedure of North Carolina 
General Statute §160A-269 for those certain parcels of surplus property bearing tax 
parcels 6553850133 and 65553850151, containing a combined total of 0.08 +/- acres, 
with a physical address of 88 No Name Rd. Franklin, NC and more particularly described 
in Book E-42, Page 234 of the Macon County Registry; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Calvin E. Weeks and Kristy N. Weeks made the initial bid for the 
property in the amount of $1,000.00; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the offer and the upset bid process was properly advertised, 
posted and published; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, no upset bid has been received within the time noticed and published 
as provided in NCGS §160A-269 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, it is Resolved by the Macon County Board of 
Commissioners that it does hereby accept the offer bid by Calvin and Kristy Weeks in the 
amount of $1,000.00, and authorizes the sale of the property described below subject to 
the following terms and conditions:  
 

BEING those two parcels of real property containing a combined total of .08 +/- 
acre with a physical address of 88 No Name Rd bearing PIN#s 6553850133 and 
6553850151 and more particularly described that certain Commissioner’s deed to 
the County of Macon recorded in Book E-42, Page 234 of the Macon County 
Registry. 
 
SUBJECT TO the removal of the structure currently located on the tract bearing 
Parcel Identification number 6553850133, which has previously been deemed a 
public nuisance and hazard, within 180 days of receiving deed to the same.  
 
SUBJECT TO any Homeowner’s Association dues owing on the property.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Macon County Board of Commissioners 

that upon receipt of the $1,000 purchase price, plus $31 recording fees, less the $50 
deposit previously made, for a total remaining amount owed of $981, it does hereby 
authorize Interim County Manager, Warren Cabe, to execute and record a Special 
Warranty Deed for the above-described property to Calvin E. Weeks and Kristy N. 
Weeks.  

 
 



MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
CATEGORY – NEW BUSINESS 

 
 
MEETING DATE:  JANUARY 14, 2025  
 
11(A).      Representatives from McGill Associates will be presenting the bid 
package for Phase 1A of the Recreation Master Plan. This includes the 
installation of (6) Tennis Courts, (9) Pickleball Courts, a restroom/picnic 
shelter, electrical, utilities, asphalt paving, a flag pole, concrete sidewalks, 
and erosion control. A motion to proceed with the bid process would be 
suggested. 
 
11(B).      Your packet includes the Clock Tower Scope of Work and three 
Bids.  Mr. Morgan is requesting the award of a bid and authorization to 
proceed with the work as indicated in the Scope of Work.  Mr. Morgan will 
be present to answer any questions and to provide further information. 
 
11(C).     Mr. Morgan will provide an update on the Macon Early College 
assessment.  Your packet includes an amended scope of work proposal and a 
proposed schematic design.  Action to approve both of these items is needed. 
 
11(D). Attorney Ridenour has recommended a change to the Boards’ 
Rules of Procedure in regard to the meeting agenda as stated in Rule 11.  He 
is recommending moving “Additions to the Agenda” before the “Public 
Comment Period” so the public is informed and has the opportunity to 
comment on agenda items added at the meeting.  A copy of the proposed 
change is included in your packet and will require board action. 
 
11(E).   Chairman Young has requested a brief discussion regarding 
annual evaluations for the County Manager and the County Attorney.  
Proposed evaluation forms are included in your packet. 
 



TO
W

N
 O

F 
FR

AN
KL

IN
, N

O
R

TH
 C

AR
O

LI
N

A

VE
TE

R
AN

S 
M

EM
O

R
IA

L 
PA

R
K

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 P

H
AS

E 
1

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 O

F 
D

R
AW

IN
G

S

JA
N

U
AR

Y 
20

25

VI
C

IN
IT

Y 
M

AP

G
-0

01
 . 

. .
 . 

. C
O

VE
R

 S
H

EE
T

G
-0

02
 . 

. .
 . 

. G
EN

ER
AL

 N
O

TE
S 

AN
D

 L
EG

EN
D

S

G
-0

03
 . 

. .
 . 

. E
R

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

N
O

TE
S

C
D

-1
01

 . 
. .

 . 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S 

AN
D

 D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N

C
-1

01
 . 

. .
 . 

.  
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

C
-2

01
 . 

. .
 . 

.
G

R
AD

IN
G

, D
R

AI
N

AG
E,

 A
N

D
 E

R
O

SI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PH

AS
E 

I

C
-2

02
 . 

. .
 . 

.
G

R
AD

IN
G

, D
R

AI
N

AG
E,

 A
N

D
 E

R
O

SI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PH

AS
E 

II

C
-2

03
 . 

. .
 . 

.
SI

TE
 D

R
AI

N
AG

E 
AR

EA
S

C
-3

01
 . 

. .
 . 

.
U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

C
-5

01
 . 

. .
 . 

.
D

ET
AI

LS

C
-5

02
 . 

. .
 . 

.  
D

ET
AI

LS
 

C
-5

03
 . 

. .
 . 

.  
D

ET
AI

LS

C
-5

04
 . 

. .
 . 

.  
D

ET
AI

LS

60
0

0
30

0

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 V

AL
U

E 
 =

   
   

   
 F

EE
T

60
0

G
R

AP
H

IC
 S

C
AL

E

12
00

60
0

\\MCGILL-DC\MCGILL-PROJECTS$\2023\23.01746-MACONCONC-VETERANSMEMORIALPARKPH1\DRAWINGS\23.01746 VETERANS PARK PH1_BASE.DWG PLOT DATE 1/7/2025 12:08 PM KURTIS DURRANT

m
cg

illa
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

A-
10

0 
. .

 . 
. .

  A
PP

EN
D

IX
 'B

' A
N

D
 E

M
ER

G
EN

C
Y 

EG
R

ES
S 

PL
AN

A-
10

1 
. .

 . 
. .

  F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N
 A

N
D

 C
EI

LI
N

G
 P

LA
N

A-
10

2 
. .

 . 
. .

  E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

S 
AN

D
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

EC
TI

O
N

S

A-
10

3 
. .

 . 
. .

  R
O

O
F 

PL
AN

, R
ES

TR
O

O
M

 R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
 A

N
D

 S
C

H
ED

U
LE

S

S-
10

1 
. .

 . 
. .

  F
O

U
N

D
AT

IO
N

 P
LA

N
 A

N
D

 R
O

O
F 

FR
AM

IN
G

 P
LA

N

S-
10

2 
. .

 . 
. .

  S
TR

U
C

TU
R

AL
 N

O
TE

S 
AN

D
 D

ET
AI

LS

P1
 . 

. .
 . 

. .
 . 

  P
LU

M
BI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

& 
SC

H
ED

U
LE

S

P2
 . 

. .
 . 

. .
 . 

  P
LU

M
BI

N
G

 P
LA

N
S

P3
 . 

. .
 . 

. .
 . 

  P
LU

M
BI

N
G

 D
ET

AI
LS

M
1 

. .
 . 

. .
 . 

.  
 M

EC
H

AN
IC

AL
 N

O
TE

S 
& 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
S

M
2 

. .
 . 

. .
 . 

.  
 M

EC
H

AN
IC

AL
 P

LA
N

 &
 D

ET
AI

LS

E1
 . 

. .
 . 

. .
 . 

  E
LE

C
TR

IC
AL

 N
O

TE
S 

& 
SC

H
ED

U
LE

S

E2
 . 

. .
 . 

. .
 . 

  E
LE

C
TR

IC
AL

 P
LA

N
S

E3
 . 

. .
 . 

. .
 . 

  S
PO

R
TS

 L
IG

H
TI

N
G

 P
LA

N

E4
 . 

. .
 . 

. .
 . 

  R
IS

ER
 D

IA
G

R
AM

 &
 P

AN
EL

 S
C

H
ED

U
LE

S



N
/F

D
R

A
K

E
 E

N
TE

R
TA

IN
M

E
N

T 
PR

O
PE

R
TI

E
S

 L
LC

D
B

 M
-3

3,
 P

G
 2

7
PI

N
 6

58
4-

82
42

40

N
/F

M
A

C
O

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

D
B

 I
-3

8,
 P

G
 2

19
4

PI
N

 6
58

4-
81

-0
16

5

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
D

IV
IS

IO
N

 V
AL

U
E 

 =
   

   
   

 F
EE

T
G

R
AP

H
IC

 S
C

AL
E

30
15

30
60

30

0

K.
 D

U
R

R
AN

T

C
. C

R
AN

W
IL

L

\\MCGILL-DC\MCGILL-PROJECTS$\2023\23.01746-MACONCONC-VETERANSMEMORIALPARKPH1\DRAWINGS\23.01746 VETERANS PARK PH1_BASE.DWG PLOT DATE 1/7/2025 9:11 AM KURTIS DURRANT

N
O

.
D

AT
E

BY
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

SH
EE

T

O
FF

IC
E 

M
AN

AG
ER

PR
O

JE
C

T 
M

AN
AG

ER

D
ES

IG
N

ER

R
EV

IE
W

ER
D

AT
E

PR
O

JE
C

T 
#

FU
N

D
IN

G
 #

VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK IMPROVEMENTS PHASE 1   MACON COUNTY   24X36

m
cg

illa
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

TO
W

N
 O

F 
FR

AN
KL

IN
, N

O
R

TH
 C

AR
O

LI
N

A

VE
TE

R
AN

S 
M

EM
O

R
IA

L 
PA

R
K

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 P

H
AS

E 
1

D
. C

H
AP

M
AN

M
. N

O
R

R
IS

JA
N

U
AR

Y 
20

25
23

.0
17

46



CLOCK TOWER RENOVATION SCOPE OF WORK 

 

1. Clean brick and structure (*no high pressure washing on brick or masonry surfaces). 
Use non-ionic detergent and water with medium bristle brush to clean brick and 
masonry. 

2. Seal brick and masonry with Sikaguard 277 Enviroseal or Sika Masterprotect H177. 
3. Clean wood surfaces with same cleaner as used on the brick, Pressure washing is 

allowed on wood surfaces.  
4. After cleaning all exterior wood surfaces, replace any and all damaged or decayed 

wood material with like materials and like design, tighten any loose nails, screws etc. 
5. All exterior wood surfaces, remove all loose or flaking paint, caulk tight, and seal gaps 

and holes of all unnecessary openings. Apply two coats Sherwin-Williams Woodscapes 
Exterior Acrylic Solid Color House Stain. Color to match existing.  

6. Interior masonry or stucco, two coats Sherwin-Williams Super Paint Exterior acrylic 
latex paint of same color as exterior wood surfaces, exc. 

7. Remove all roof coverings to reveal roof sheathing and inspect for damaged or 
decayed sheathing. Replace with fire retardant treated plywood any roof sheathing 
deemed necessary. 

8. Inspect Skylight, replace if required with similar type and size        (see alternate #1) 
9. Cover roof sheathing with Ice and Rain shield. Flash junction of roof sheathing and 

siding and skylight as necessary to maintain water tight junction. 
10. Cover roof with Certainteed Highland Slate, Black Granite color, and install new metal 

drip edge color to match siding color. 
11. Replace screen wire on interior of louvers with aluminum screen wire 
12. Contractor will clean site and haul off and dispose all debris at the end of each work 

day 
13. Contractor will install safety fencing and or barricades around project site  
14. Contractor will protect clock tower mechanisms from any damage caused by this 

renovation project. 
15. Contractor will protect all vegetation, live or artificial, from damage by renovation 

process.  
16. Contractor to provide all necessary labor, materials, tools, safety equipment, scaffolds 

and or personnel lifts etc., for completion of this project  
17. Project to be complete within sixty (90) days of award of contract. Any extension of 

this time is at the discretion of the owner. 









�

��������	
������������������������
���������������������������������������

�

��� ��!���"#���

$%&'%()�*+�,-,.�
�
�
/(0�1%((2&�3%42+�/%56&�36'&7)�/%&%82(��
.�1297�/%:&�;7(227�
<(%&=>:&+�?3�,@ABC�
�
D2E��F(6G692H�IHH2H�;56G2�6J�K6(=�L�<22�IM2&HM2&7�J6(�7N2�

OPQQRSTUVR�WXSYXZR�[PQ\�]XSP̂�OP_̂T̀�aXQb̀�OPbbRZR�

c2%(�/(0�3%42+�

d�%M�G>2%92H�76�9'4M:7�7N:9+�(2e'2972H+�F(6G69%>�J6(�7N2�56&9:H2(%7:6&�6J�7N2�/%56&�
36'&7)�f6%(H�6J�36MM:99:6&2(90�

;56G2�6J�16(=�

gN:9�F(6G69%>�G(6h:H29�c29:8&�L�IHM:&:97(%7:h2�;2(h:529�76�256&6M:5%>>)�2iG%&H�6JJ:52�
9G%52�4)�2&5>69:&8�7N2�2i:97:&8�g:M42(�<(%M2�j&7()�F6(7:560��dJ�%GG(6h2H+�7N2�G(6G692H�
K6(=�K:>>�M6H:J)�7N2�klmnomlp�OP̂qTQ_STUP̂�rPS_sR̂Tq0�

F(6G692H�K6(=E�

t�c2M6>:7:6&�6J�7N2�2i72(:6(�56&5(272�9>%4�

t�c2M6>:7:6&�6J�4(:5=�G>%&72(9�

t�c2M6>:7:6&�6J�%Hu%52&7�56&5(272�K%>=�%9�(2e':(2H�J6(�7N2�%HH2H�K6(=�

t�D2G>%52M2&7�6J�56&5(272�9>%4�

t�?2K�:&9'>%72H�2i72(:6(�K%>>9�

t�?2K�1:&H6K9�

t�?2K�v297:4'>2�j&7()�

t�?2K�32:>:&8�

t�?2K�w:8N7:&8�

t�?2K�x2%7:&8�L�I:(�36&H:7:6&:&8��

t�D2976(%7:6&�6J�J(6&7�2&7(%&52�K%>=�%&H�G>%&72(9�

t�c27%:>:&8�76�56&h2)�7N2�&2K�2>2M2&79�%&H�%992M4>:29��

t�yGH%72�F(6u257�/%&'%>��

t�;7('57'(%>�IM2&HM2&79�76�7N2�g:M42(�F697�f%92�%HH(299:&8�7N2�6(:8:&%>�

(256&97('57:h2�K6(=�

�

z
{
|
}
~
�}
�
{
�{
�
�
��
�



�

��������	
������������������������
���������������������������������������

�

��� ��!���"#���

$%&'()*&)+%,-.�

/� 0123+&)�013*�4*5(*6�7�893,)*�:(;*�<,;*)=�>-,2�

/� ?*5*-19�?*@(A2�?*5*-19B*2)�C-11%�>-,2�

/� ?*5*-19�?*@(A2�?*5*-19B*2)�:(A')(2A�D�E-*&)%(&,-�>-,2�

/� FG),(2�01+2)=�,99%15,-�;1%�>%*-(B(2,%=�<&'*B,)(&�C-11%�>-,2�)'*2�9%1&**3�6()'�)'*�
?*@(A2�?*5*-19B*2)�>,&H,A*I�

<)%+&)+%,-.�

/� ?*5*-19�J,%%,)(5*�?*@&%(9)(12�;1%�<)%+&)+%,-�K13(;(&,)(12@�,23�3*),(-(2A�
/� >%15(3*�L,@(&�M,--�<*&)(12�)'%1+A'�E2&-1@*3�>1%)(&1�
/� J1)*�%*N+(%*3�O(BG*%�>1@)�<9-(&*�,23�G*,%(2A�&123()(12�PQ)�(@�,@@+B*3�)'*�>1@)�
>1(2)�:1,3@�6(--�%*B,(2�(2�-(*+�1;�&',2A(2A�)1�-1,3�G*,%(2A�*R)*%(1%�6,--@SI�

/� J1)*�2*6�TO+%2U?162V�<-,G�
/� ?*5*-19�3(,A%,BB,)(&�C1+23,)(12�>-,2��
/� Q2&-+3*�15*%,--�?(B*2@(12@�,)�2*6�@-,G�G*-16�)'*�>1%)(&1�,23�2*6�W*@)(G+-*�
/� F+)-(2*�<9*&(;(&,)(12�P(2&-+3*�012&%*)*�,23�4*(2;1%&(2A�<9*&(;(&,)(12@S�

K*&',2(&,-�7�E-*&)%(&,-.�

/� 0123+&)�013*�4*5(*6�

/� $@@*@@�ER(@)(2A�K*&',2(&,-�<=@)*B�

/� $@@*@@�ER(@)(2A�E-*&)%(&,-�<=@)*B�

/� ?*5*-19�<&'*B,)(&�C-11%�>-,2�

/� ?*5*-19�<&'*B,)(&�:(A')(2A�D�E-*&)%(&,-�>-,2�

$@@(@)�6()'�>%*-(B(2,%=�01@)�C**3G,&H.�

/� O'*�$%&'()*&)�6(--�9%15(3*�9%1A%*@@�31&+B*2)@�)1�)'*�X0�;1%�+@*�(2�A*2*%,)(2A�
9%*-(B(2,%=�&1@)�;**3G,&H�,23Y�)1�,33%*@@�N+*@)(12@�,23�&-,%(;(&,)(12@I�

/� O'*�$%&'()*&)�6(--�@+GB()�,�?*@(A2�?*5*-19B*2)�4*5(*6�<*)�)1�K,&12�01+2)=�;1%�
6%())*2�,99%15,-I�

/� 8912�,99%15,-.�

Z�O'*�$%&'()*&)�6(--�@',%*�)'*�??�@*)�6()'�)'*�012)%,&)1%�)1�+93,)*�)'*�
9%*-(B(2,%=�&1@)�*@)(B,)*I�

Z�O'*�?*@(A2�O*,B�6(--�>%1&**3�6()'�)'*�,B*23B*2)@�)1�)'*�012@)%+&)(12�
?1&+B*2)@I��

[
\
]̂
_
�̂
\̀
�\
a
b
ca
d



�

��������	
������������������������
���������������������������������������
�

��� ��!���"#���

$� %&'()*�*+,�-(,./,/�0123).45�25�2�6+2.4,�71/,1�*8�*+,�918:,;*<�

$� 68.5*1&;*)8.�-/().)5*12*)8.�*8�).;=&/,�*+,�2(,./,/�%;89,�8>�?81@<�

$� 6=85,8&*�*8�).;=&/,�*+,�2(,./,/�%;89,�8>�?81@<�

68.5&=*).4�A.4).,,15��

%*1&;*&12=B�

C=8,5,=�A.4).,,1).4��

D,.�E855F�E<A<F�E1).;)92=��

G,;+2.);2=�H�A=,;*1);2=B��

D<�-&4&5*&5�%)(5�A.4).,,1).4�

D<�-&4&5*&5�%)(5F�EA�

I+,�>,,F�).;=&/).4�-1;+)*,;*&12=F�%*1&;*&12=F�G,;+2.);2=�H�A=,;*1);2=�%;+,(2*);�0,5)4.�
5,1J);,5F�5+2==�.8*�,K;,,/�LMNMOOPOON�,K;=&5)J,�8>�1,)('&152'=,�,K9,.5,5<��Q,>,1�*8�*+,B�
RSTUVWXYZT�[V\Z]̂�_VV�̀aVXbcdê fF�>8==83).4�*+)5�92124129+<�

ghijklmnh�ojpnqr�sjj�tujlvwxyrz�

{xrp|}mlrm� ~ux�xpjw�sjj�ojphun�mnxr�

%*1&;*&12=� ���������� �,1)>),/��,,���,1'2=�
G�H�A� ���������� 68.5&=*2.*�5�E189852=�-**2;+,/�

%)*,��)5)*������.;=&/,/� ���������� �),=/��,1)>��,K)5*).4�;8./)*)8.5�
�G,;+2.);2=�H�A=,;*1);2=�5�5*,(5F�,*;<���

68.5&=*2.*5� ������F���<���������0,5)4.�0,J,=89(,.*��

� � �

-1;+)*,;*&12=� ������F���<��� 0,5)4.�0,J,=89(,.*�

�

0,5)4.�I,2(��,,�I8*2=�����LMNMOOPOO� �8*�*8�AK;,,/���0,5)4.�0,J,=89(,.*�I8*2=�

I+,�G�H�A�A.4).,,1�+25�).;=&/,/�����%)*,��)5)*�>81�J,1)>);2*)8.�8>�,K)5*).4�;8./)*)8.5�2./�
5�5*,(5<��

Q,>,1�*8�-EEA�0���-F�>81������+8&1=��12*,5�

�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
 
�
��
¡
¢
£¡
¤



�

��������	
������������������������
���������������������������������������

�

��� ��!�"�#$���

�

%&�'()*�+,-.-*/0�122'*�3)'(�4-5,�/..,-6/07�.02/*2�*)897�:/'27�/9:�,2'5,9�/9�2;2<5'2:�<-.4�
&-,�14�,2<-,:*�/9:�'(2�=2*)89�>2/1�3)00�?28)9@��

=-�9-'�(2*)'/'2�'-�</00�-,�21/)0�12�)&�4-5�(/62�/94�A52*')-9*�-,�922:�/::)')-9/0�
)9&-,1/')-9@�

B)9<2,2047�

�

+2'2,�B@�C--.2,7�D%D7�EFDGH�

�

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII7�������IIIIIIIIIIIIII�

J,@�K/,,29�F/?27�J/<-9�F-59'4�J/9/82,7�����������������=/'2�

�

LM9:�-&�+,-.-*/0L�

D''/<(129'*N��

O�D..29:);LDL�PQPR�CD=S+�(-5,04�,/'2�*(22'L�TUV�./82��

O�F-9*50'/9'�+,-.-*/0L�+7�J7�S�ML�TWV�./82*�

X
Y
Z
[
\
�[
]
Y
�Ŷ
_̀
â



�

������������	
��������� � � �

������������	
�������
����������

��������������

�����
������������ ���
� ������!�

�

"�#��$��������%�!�

�

&�����������'�����(����#�
��#��

���'�����#�
��#��� ��"��
���)�� ��
���

���* ����
���� #��

�����
������������ ���
� ����%��

+
 ��� 
��

�

,�-� ��
��
���.
�$���/� ��0����� �#����#�������	#��� �
#�"��
���

� � ��1�����������
�0
���

� & #��������1��� �#���	����2�������������
�1���������

� 33�	
�����/ ���,� 0�

� /� �4�
���������� ���
� ���3�!�
�

����-�

�

��5���
�� �����
����
���	���
#���5���������5����#�0�'��6�#�� ���'��'���0�'���'���
�
� �1�� ����

����#�����
# �
���� ������0�$���2�5�������	#��� �
#�"��
��� #4 ����

78�.���'��6�#��#���
�����5���#���
�����
��
����
�$��95� ��0����� �#��'��#�����#�� ����2��

�55
#��� �0���������1����� 0�����.���	#��� �
#�"��
���
�����'���
0��
�5��� �
���5���

:$ ���' �4;�#������#�
���#������

<8�.��� �� ��5�2��4�
�� ''���
� ���1�3=%��5��

>8�?+���
����'�#��0����$��$ ��0����0�#�������
�
9�'�
���� ��'��'��1����@�A��

B8����#��
# ��'�2��� �0��
���
���0��
����5��� �� ��5������ �
������

C8����#��
#�����
#��
�� �����0����� ���# ' #
�1�5���'��'���0������ �
�����

D8�"��
����2
���$��'���������� ���
� �	� �����
�0
�����0���

E8����'�����#�
��#��� ��"��
���)�� ��
���2
���'���
0��������"�02����#�
��#��� ��'� ���

��#�
��� �0����� �
���5
����5�����
��
��� �0�'��'���0�'� ����

F8�.���0��
����2
���
�#��0��0� 2
������'�#
5
# �
���� �0������������ ��� �4���G�
��0�5�������

?+��� �0����#��
# ��#������#�
����

�

.���'����-�����933�9��!=�

�� 
�-����
��H$ �
�����
�����#���

I
J
K
L
M
�L
N
J
�J
O
P
QO
R



�

�����������		
�������

������������������

�������	����

�

��������������� ��!��  "�� ��#� ��!���$�������$� ��%������ ���
����&��	������'	�'(	�)��!*�

(�$$������'" �*�+� ' ,�
�	%�*��
	(����	���������'	�'(	�)��

-.�������������� ��!��  "�� ��"�$*�!���� ���/"�$*�!��0�����$�����& �����!*��#� ��!��0����

�$�����& ������ ���
����&��	��!�$"*������
�	
	 �*�����'	�'(	�)��

--���
���������	! �(�$$�����	!*�! �*��!*���&��

����	!��$�!������ ��������� 
���������	!�(�$$�

!	�������1"���*��

-2��34�5��!*�6$�������$������������� ��!�
$�!� ���� ������#
����*��

-7��8	� ����%� �� ������!�$"*�*��!������������� ��!��

-9�������������� ��! �*	�!	���!�$"*����!� ��*�*� ��!����

-:�������������� ��!�
$�! �(�$$�!	����� ��$�*��

-;���$"���!���� ��! ��!*��**���	!�$�35�5��!*�6$�������$�*� ��! ���!����
�	%�*�*�� �

�**���	!�$� ��%��� ������1"� ��*��

-<���	�"��!� �(�$$�!	���	����	"���������5	! ��"���	!�=�������

->��?	�)�(�$$�!	������! 
����*��&�������6$�������$�! 
���	���

�

��	
	 �*������������� ��!�0�� @�

�

�$"���!���� ��!@�

8	��$"���!���� ��!��� ����!���1"� ��*�	���!�$"*�*��

�

34�5��� ��!��!*���	*"���	!@� � � � � � A������������

�

6$�������$��� ��!��!*���	*"���	!@� � � � � � A������������

�

�������������'�� ��!������4� ��@�� � � � � � A������������

�

�**���	!�$����%��� ���!����
�	%�*�*��� �*�	!������ �	��A�������
����	"���	��6!��!����!�������

�!*�AB�����
����	"���	��C���!���$�C�����

D����"� ��$��6#
�! � @�

/$��)���!�����!� @� A������������1"� ��*�

E�B#���5	
�� @� �����B���������1"� ��*�

�

�

�

F
G
H
I
J
�I
K
G
�G
L
M
NL
O



�

�����������		
�������

������������������

�������	����

���������

���������	������ ��!�"��#���#�$ %%���� ��	 ��#��	��&%����!�#�	��
�����������	�
%�� 	��	��

#	�'����!��

�

(��� ��� 	��	������ ��!��

(& !���������������������� ����#����� �&���
�����'
	������#��!�$� ������	� ��������&��������	��

���� ��� 	������&��)$������	�
��!�� 	��!&�%%������#���	���*
��!�!���#�!��� ��!�
���	���#�


� 	���	��&������ ��� 	��#�����

�

���&������!�	���& !�
�	
	!�%�����!�� !����	����
%��!��! ������'���	����	�	'��	�� ����

�

�

�		
������& ����'��%++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++�����++++++++++++�

�

�

,���'�'!�'!�� �!��-�� ���������.�+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++������+++++++++++++�

�

�

�

�

�

�

/
0
1
2
3
�2
4
0
�0
5
6
75
8



�
�
�
��������	�	�
�
������������������
�
�
�
�
��������������� !"�
�
�
#$%&'()�*+,-./0&,(�1�2&$3-�4,+5� 677�8���
�+9:$3� 6�;�8���

�

<
=
>
?
@
�?
A
=
�=
B
C
DB
E

















Diagrammatic Plan Developed for Consultant's use in generating proposals



Rules of Procedure  
Page 4 
 
 

Adopted February 11, 2008 
Revised December 8, 2008 

submitted to the Clerk to the Board 7 days preceding the meeting date.  Any Board 
member may request that an item be placed on the Agenda. 

 
(b) A copy of the Agenda shall be available for public inspection after distribution to 

each of the Commissioners has been completed.  A copy of the Agenda also shall be 
posted on the County’s website.    At least one copy of the complete agenda package 
shall be available for public inspection and reference at the County Manager’s office 
prior to the meeting and at the rear of the Commissioners' Meeting Room during the 
meeting, and copies shall be available for members of the press. 

 
(c) Any member of the Board, the County Manager, or County Attorney may add any 

item to the Agenda during “Adjustments to the Agenda” (Rule 11, below) by a 
majority vote of the Board. 

 
(d) As part of the Agenda, the County Manager, in consultation with the Chairperson, 

shall prepare consent items for the Agenda.  These items shall consist of routine 
business items which are not considered to be controversial or items which have 
previously been discussed at a Work Session.  Any item may be removed by a 
Commissioner during “Adjustments to the Agenda” (Rule 11, below).  Should any 
item on the consent agenda be removed from the consent agenda, the Chairperson, in 
his/her discretion, may place the item on the Agenda or the item may be added by 
majority vote (Rule 10 (c), above). 

 
 Rule 11.  Order of Business 
 
 At regular meetings, the Board shall proceed to business in the following order: 
 

1. Call to Order and Welcome by the Chairperson 
2. Announcements 
3. Moment of Silence 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Scheduled Public Hearings 
6. Public Comment Period 
7. Additions to the Agenda 
8. Adjustments to and Approval of the Agenda 
9. Reports and Presentations 
9 Old Business 
10. New Business 
11. Consent Agenda 
12. Appointments 
13. Closed Session** 
14. Adjournment 

 
**May be at the beginning of the meeting.   
 

VI. INFORMAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Additions to the Agenda
Public Comment Period



 
 

MACON COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE AND DEVELOPMENT EVALUATION 

FOR THE COUNTY MANAGER 
 

COUNTY MANAGER PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
 
This form may be used by each member of the Board of Commissioners to evaluate the County 
Manager’s performance in fulfilling each of the roles which he/she plays in the county’s government.  
Completed evaluations will become part of the manager’s personnel file.   
 
Use this scale to evaluate each performance measure: 
1 – Below expectations – needs improvement 
2 – Meets expectations 
3 – Exceeds expectations 
N – No basis to evaluate performance measure on 
 
1. PERSONAL 
  
 _____  Invests sufficient time and effort toward being  

diligent in the discharge of their duties. 
 
 _____  Composure, appearance and attitude fitting for an  

individual in their executive position. 
 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 
2. PROFESSIONAL SKILLS AND STATUS 
  

_____  Knowledge of current developments affecting the  
management field. 

 
 _____  Respected in the management profession. 
 
 _____  Has the capacity for and interest in innovation. 
 
 _____  Anticipates problems and develops effective  

approaches for solving them.  
 

_____  Willing to try new ideas proposed by board  
members and/or staff. 

 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 



 
3. RELATIONSHIPS WITH COUNCIL:  
 
 
 _____  Carries out directives of the Board as a whole. 
 

_____  Assists the Board in establishing policy while   
acknowledging that the ultimate authority rests    
with the Board. 

 
 _____  Responds to requests for information or assistance  

by the Board. 
 
 _____  Informs the Board of administrative developments. 
 
 _____  Receptive to constructive criticism and advice.  
 
 COMMENTS: 
4. POLICY EXECUTION 
  
 _____  Implements Board action in accordance with the  

intent of the Board.  
 
 _____  Supports the actions of the Board after a  

decision is reached.  
 
 _____  Enforces county policies. 
 
 _____  Understands county laws and ordinances. 
 
 _____  Reviews enforcement procedures periodically to  

improve effectiveness.  
 

             Offers workable alternatives to the Board for  
changes in the law when an ordinance or policy proves impractical in actual 
administration.   

 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
5. REPORTING 

 _____  Provides reports to the board regarding matters of  
Importance to the county.  

 
 _____  Reports are accurate and comprehensive. 
 

_____  Makes effective and logical written and oral  
presentations; 

 
 _____  Reports are generally produced through own  

initiative rather than when requested by the board. 
 
 
 _____  Prepares a sound agenda which prevents trivial,  



administrative matters from being reviewed by the Board. 
 
 COMMENTS: 

 
 
 
 
 
6. RELATIONSHIPS WITH RESIDENTS, MEDIA AND OTHER AGENCIES 
  
 _____  Willing to meet with members of the community  

and discuss their complaints and concerns. 
 
 _____  Dedicated to providing quality governmental  

services to the community and to its citizens. 
 
 _____  Available to and skillful with news media, avoiding  

political positions and displaying any sign of partisanship.   
 
 _____  Has the capacity and willingness to listen to others  

and to recognize their interests - works well with others. 
 

_____  Cooperates with neighboring communities. 
 

_____  Cooperates with county, state and federal  
governments. 

 
 _____  Cooperates with the governmental units within the  

county as well as town organizations, such as the Chamber of Commerce, Macon 
County Schools, public safety, etc.   

 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 
7. STAFFING 
 

_____  Recruits and retains competent personnel for county  
positions.   

 
 _____  Aware of weak or inefficient administrative  

personnel and works to improve their performance.   
 
 _____  Works well with staff members to help them grow  

in their positions. 
 
 _____  Accurately informed and concerned about  

personnel issues, such as insurance, fringe benefits, promotions and retirement 
issues.   

 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 



 
 
8. SUPERVISION 
  
 _____  Ensures that department heads make decisions  

within their own jurisdictions without County Manager approval, yet maintains 
general control of administrative operations.   

 
_____  Delegates duties and does not attempt to perform  

the jobs of his/her subordinates for them.  
   

 _____  Instills confidence and initiative in subordinates  
and emphasizes support rather than restrictive controls for their programs.   

 
 _____  Has developed a friendly and informal relationship  

with the work force as a whole, yet maintains the prestige and dignity of the 
manager’s office. 

 
_____  Evaluates personnel periodically and points out  

staff weaknesses and strengths.   
 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 
9. FISCAL MANAGEMENT 
 
 _____  Prepares a balanced budget to provide services at a  

level intended by the Board. 
 
 _____  Makes the best possible use of available funds,  

conscious of the need to operate the county efficiently and effectively.   
 
 _____  Prepares and presents budget in a logical and easily  

understood format.   
 
 _____  Keeps Board well informed of financial status  

of the county.   
 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
10. IN THINKING BACK OVER THE PAST YEAR, WHAT DO YOU FEEL HAVE BEEN THE 

MORE OUTSTANDING ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF THE COUNTY MANAGER? 
 
 
 
 
11. HAS MANAGER ACCOMPLISHED OR WORKED TOWARD ACCOMPLISHING GOALS 

ESTABLISHED BY THE BOARD? 
 
 



 
 
12. WHAT WOULD YOU CONSIDER THE MANAGER’S STRONG POINTS?  
 
 
 
 
13. WHAT AREAS WOULD YOU SUGGEST THE MANAGER WORK ON TO IMPROVE HIS 

SKILLS AND BE MORE EFFECTIVE? 
 
 
 
 
14. WHAT ARE THE MAJOR GOALS ON WHICH THE MANAGER NEEDS TO FOCUS ON IN 

THE COMING YEAR?   
 
 
 
 
Signature __________________________________ 
        
   
       Date __________________________________ 



 
 

MACON COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE AND DEVELOPMENT EVALUATION 

FOR THE COUNTY ATTORNEY  
 
 
This form may be used by each member of the Board to evaluate the County Attorney’s performance in 
fulfilling the attorney’s role in the County’s government.   
 
Use this scale to evaluate each performance measure: 
1 – Below expectations – needs improvement 
2 – Meets expectations 
3 – Exceeds expectations 
N – No basis to evaluate performance measure on 
 
1. PERSONAL 
  
 _____  Invests sufficient time and effort toward being  

diligent in the discharge of the duties of the County Attorney. 
 
 _____  Composure, appearance and attitude fitting for an  

individual in such position. 
 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
2. PROFESSIONAL SKILLS AND STATUS 
  

_____  Knowledge of current developments affecting the law.  
 
 _____  Respected in the legal profession.  
 
 _____  Has the capacity for and interest in innovation. 
 
 _____  Anticipates problems and develops effective  

approaches for solving them.  
 

_____  Willing to try new ideas proposed by Board  
members and/or staff. 

 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3. RELATIONSHIPS WITH BOARD:  
 
 
 _____  Carries out directives of the Board as a whole. 
 

_____  Assists the Board in establishing policy while   
acknowledging that the ultimate authority rests    
with the Board. 

 
 _____  Responds to requests for information or assistance  

by the Board. 
 
 _____  Informs the Board of legal developments. 
 
 _____  Receptive to constructive criticism.  
 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
4. POLICY EXECUTION 
  
 _____  Implements Board action in accordance with the  

intent of the Board.  
 
 _____  Follows through with the decisions of the Board after a  

decision is reached.  
 
 _____  Enforces County policies. 
 
 _____  Understands County laws and its ordinances. 
 
 _____  Reviews enforcement procedures periodically to  

improve effectiveness.  
 
 _____  Offers workable alternatives to the Board for  

changes in the law when an ordinance or policy proves impractical in actual 
administration.   

 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
5. REPORTING 

 _____  Provides updates to the Board regarding matters of  
importance to the County .  

 
 

_____  Makes effective and logical written and oral  
presentations; 

 
 _____  Legal Updates are generally produced through own  

initiative rather than when requested by the Board. 
 



 
 
 COMMENTS: 

 
 
 
 
 
6. RELATIONSHIPS WITH RESIDENTS, MEDIA AND OTHER AGENCIES 
  
 _____  If requested by the Board, is willing to meet with members of the community  

and discuss their complaints and concerns. 
 
 _____  Dedicated to providing quality legal services to the Board and County.  
 
 _____  Available to and skillful in handling news media, avoiding  

political positions and displaying any sign of partisanship.   
 
 _____  Has the capacity and willingness to listen to others  

and to recognize their interests - works well with others. 
 

_____  Cooperates with neighboring communities. 
 

_____  Cooperates with the municipalities within the county, state and federal  
governments. 

 
 _____  Cooperates with the governmental units within the  

county organizations, such as the Health Department. 
 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 
7. STAFFING 
  
 
 _____  Works well with staff members.  
 
 _____  Accurately informed and concerned about legal issues.   
 
 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9. FISCAL MANAGEMENT 
 
 
 _____  Makes the best possible use of the County’s time and is  

conscious of the need to operate the county efficiently and effectively.   
 
 COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
10. IN THINKING BACK OVER THE PAST YEAR, WHAT DO YOU FEEL HAVE BEEN THE 

MORE OUTSTANDING ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF THE  COUNTY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
11. HAS THE ATTORNEY ACCOMPLISHED OR WORKED TOWARD ACCOMPLISHING 

GOALS ESTABLISHED BY THE BOARD? 
 
 
 
 
12. WHAT WOULD YOU CONSIDER THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S STRONG POINTS?  
 
 
 
 
13. WHAT AREAS WOULD YOU SUGGEST THE COUNTY ATTORNEY WORK ON TO 

IMPROVE HIS SKILLS AND BE MORE EFFECTIVE? 
 
 
 
 
14. WHAT ARE THE MAJOR GOALS ON WHICH THE COUNTY ATTORNEY NEEDS TO 

FOCUS ON IN THE COMING YEAR?   
 
 
 
 
Signature __________________________________ 
        
   
       Date __________________________________ 



MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
CATEGORY – CONSENT AGENDA 

 
 
MEETING DATE:  JANUARY 14 2024  
 
Item 12A. Draft minutes from the December 10, 2024, regular meeting are 
attached for the board’s review and approval. (Tammy Keezer) 
 
Item 12B.  Budget Amendments #159-164 are attached for your review and 
approval. (Lori Carpenter) 
 
Item 12C.  Tax releases for the month of December 2024 in the amount of 
$991.60, per the attached memorandum from Tax Collections Supervisor 
Delena Raby.    
 
Item 12E. A copy of the ad valorem tax collection report as of December 31, 
2024.   Report only. No action is necessary. (Delena Raby) 
    



Minutes 
12.10.24 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 

MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
DECEMBER 10, 2024 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 

Chairman Young called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. All Board Members, 
Interim County Manager Warren Cabe, Deputy Clerk Tammy Keezer, Finance 
Director Lori Carpenter, and County Attorney Eric Ridenour were present, as 
were a number of county employees, media, and citizens.    
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

(A) Mr. Cabe expressed his appreciation to Ingles for allowing the county 
to use the old Ingles building for Hurricane Helene relief efforts.   

(B) Mr. Cabe shared that the Town of Highlands is working on setting up 
a joint meeting between the Town of Highlands, the Town of 
Franklin, and this board for February 13, 2025.  Once the date is 
confirmed an official announcement will be made. 

(C) Mr. Cabe announced that Veterans Services recently held the annual 
Veterans Standdown event with 142 Veterans served from 13 
counties. 

(D)  Commissioner Breeden expressed his appreciation to the voters of 
Macon County for electing him to serve as Commissioner. 

(E)  Commissioner Young asked those in attendance to keep the Tom 
James family in their prayers.  He shared that Mr. James was a 
business owner in Macon County and a Veteran who had passed 
away earlier today. 

(F) Commissioner Shields requested citizens email questions and issues 
of concern to him or Mr. Cabe before a regularly scheduled meeting 
so those items can be researched and an answer provided at the 
meeting.   



Minutes 
12.10.24 

Page 2 of 5 
 

(G) Commissioner Shields announced that a flag ceremony would be 
held at the Crawford Center on December 13, 2024, at 8:00 a.m. 
and encouraged the public to attend. 

MOMENT OF SILENCE:  Chairman Young requested all in attendance rise 
and a moment of silence was observed.   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Led by Commissioner Shearl, the pledge to the 
flag was recited. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING(S):  None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD:   MaryAnn Ingram spoke in opposition to 
changing the ordinances related to soil and water.  She asked why we are 
looking at changing these if no one has come forward requesting a change. 
Melanie McMillian spoke in opposition to changes to the floodplain ordinance.  
Matthew Vargas spoke in opposition to changes to the floodplain ordinance 
and reflected on some of the presentations and opinions that have been 
brought forth over the past few months about those ordinances. 
 
ADDITIONS, ADJUSTMENTS TO AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Upon a 
motion by Commissioner Shearl, seconded by Commissioner Shields, the board 
voted unanimously to approve the agenda, presented. 
 
REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS: 
 

(A) PRESENTATION OF THE FY 2024 AUDIT – Jill Vang with Martin Starnes 
& Associates CPAs, P.A. presented the audit findings using a PowerPoint 
presentation.  She stated that the audit had been submitted and approved 
by the Local Government Commission.  Commissioner Young asked about 
the Medicaid deficiency.  Ms. Vang said the deficiency was related to a 
clerical error in determining eligibility where some numbers had been 
transposed, but that the individual was still eligible for Medicaid.  Ms. 
Carpenter reminded board members that in the FY24 audit funds for the 
Franklin High School project had not yet been moved but due to the school 
project the fund balance will decline by an estimated 20 million dollars over 
the next few years. 

 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 

(A)  CONSIDERATION OF SURPLUS PROPERTY OFFERS – Attorney Ridenour 
presented an offer to purchase the two properties located at 88 No Name Road 
in the amount of $1,000.  He said if the board accepts the offer the county will 
need to go through an upset bid process.  Commissioner Young indicated that 



Minutes 
12.10.24 

Page 3 of 5 
 

the building on the property needs to be demolished and the county previously 
sought bids for the demolition of that building.  He explained the upset bid 
process and said we hope to get $25,000 for the property and then it becomes 
the responsibility of the purchaser to demo the building and the sale puts the 
property back on the tax rolls.  Commissioner Young made a motion, seconded 
by Commissioner Antoine, to accept the offer and enter into the upset bid 
period.  The vote was unanimous. 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

(A) DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION FOR ANIMAL SHELTER STAFF – 
Health Director Kathy McGaha mentioned recent newspaper articles and posts 
on social media regarding the needs for the shelter and Board of Health Chair 
Jerry Hermanson said about 40 volunteers and citizens came to the Board of 
Health meeting and expressed their concerns and recommendations for the 
shelter.  Mr. Hermanson said the Board of Health asked the staff at the health 
department to complete a full analysis of the animal shelter.  He said they 
looked at short-term and long-term concerns, comparing us to other counties, 
listening to volunteers, and developing a plan they hope will carry us well into 
the future.  Mr. Hermanson said the staff at the shelter are doing a great job 
and he thinks the program fits well with the health department.  Ms. McGaha 
spoke about the planning process with staff and volunteers and said staffing is 
one of the items that was identified as well as building improvements. She 
indicated that staff have been working with Macon County Building and 
Grounds Director Travis Waldroop to get improvements and repairs made.  Ms. 
McGaha stated that the Board of Health is reviewing the possibility of 
modifying the holding period in the Animal Control Ordinance and 
implementing a community spay and neuter program.  She said she was asked 
by the Board of Health to come talk to the Board of Commissioners about 
staffing issues.  She said she is requesting one additional full-time position to 
help with feeding, cleaning, and taking care of the facility and the animals.  Ms. 
McGaha said the health department has two part-time Environmental Health 
Technician positions that they have not been able to fill and requested to shift 
one of those positions over to Animal Control.  Commissioner Antoine asked 
about total staff allocation.  Ms. McGaha said the program has three full-time 
Animal Control Officers with one vacancy, one full-time and one part-time 
Shelter Attendant, and numerous volunteers.  She clarified that she is asking 
for one additional full-time Animal Shelter Attendant and to shift one of the 
Environmental Health Technician positions over.  Commissioner Shearl asked 
about the authority the Animal Control Officers have and shared information 
about a situation he was aware of stating Animal Control did nothing to help 
with the situation.  He asked why we are supporting this program when they 
do nothing to help the citizens of Macon County and asked if there is a non-
profit or another organization that can take over the program and get out of the 



Minutes 
12.10.24 

Page 4 of 5 
 

animal control business.  Population Health Section Administrator Jimmy 
Villiard said he oversees animal control and that if other organizations have the 
capacity to take over the program they could, but that those organizations are 
currently at capacity.  He spoke about the ordinance and the authority the 
Animal Control Officers have.  Commissioner Shearl asked about the option to 
lease the facility to another organization.  Ms. McGaha said there is a minimal 
amount of responsibility the health department would have to maintain 
concerning dangerous dogs and rabies.  Commissioner Shearl said he wanted 
to investigate someone taking over the shelter.  Commissioner Young said this 
conversation is more suited for budget time and to hash out these issues then 
and if we already have a vacant position and a truck, we need to put a body in 
that position.  After some additional discussion, Ms. McGaha confirmed that 
she is requesting to shift an Environmental Health Technician position to 
Animal Control.  Commissioner Young said he feels like this needs to wait until 
budget time and no action was taken. 
  

(B) DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR OFFICE SPACE 
LOCATED AT 187 CHURCH STREET, FRANKLIN, NC - Mr. Cabe said the 
county is required to provide office space for judges and that in 2013 the 
county entered into a lease arrangement for office space which is now up for 
renewal.  He said the renewal lease is the same as the current one with an 
increase in rent from $600 to $750 per month and the money is already in the 
budget. Commissioner Breeden made a motion, seconded by Commissioner 
Shields, to approve the renewal of the lease as requested.  The vote was 
unanimous. 
 

(C) APPROVAL OF POLICY IN REFERENCE TO NEW LAW PROHIBITING 
PORNOGRAPHY ON GOVERNMENT NETWORKS AND DEVICES EFFECTIVE 
JANUARY 1, 2025 – Attorney Ridenour explained new legislation that has 
been passed and said that before this legislation there was no law against 
allowing this activity on government networks and devices.  He said we are 
mandated to put this into a policy.  Attorney Ridenour said we have a current 
policy titled “Acceptable Use Policy” and that HR Director Tammy Keezer and IT 
Director Andy Muncey have worked on updating this policy to include the new 
requirement which appears on page seven of the policy through the first part of 
page eight.  A copy of the policy is available in the office of the Clerk to the 
board and posted on the county website.  Commissioner Breeden made a 
motion, seconded by Commissioner Antoine, to approve the policy as 
presented.  The vote was unanimous. 

  
(D) APPROVAL OF SOLID WASTE ORDINANCE REVISION – Solid Waste Director 

Chris Stahl said this is an effort to clean up parts of the ordinance and bring it 
up to date with laws and changes that have been made since the 1990s when 
the ordinance was originally passed.  He said the one substantive change is in 



Minutes 
12.10.24 

Page 5 of 5 
 

the closing hours of the landfill so staff have the opportunity to clean up and 
close down before closing.  Mr. Stahl said this will require new signage that 
says they are open until 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, and until 1:30 on 
Saturday.  A copy of the ordinance is available in the office of the Clerk to the 
Board and posted on the county website.  He said this is no change to what 
they are currently doing and there is no change in the hours for the 
convenience centers.  Young made a comment about contractors working until 
5 p.m. and the landfill being closed so they can't take their waste to the landfill 
at the end of their work day.  Commissioner Antoine made a motion, seconded 
by Commissioner Shields, to approve the revisions to the ordinance as 
requested.  The vote was unanimous.   

 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  Upon a motion by Commissioner Shearl, seconded by 
Commissioner Breeden, the board voted unanimously to approve the consent 
agenda as presented which includes: (A) Minutes of the December 2, 2024, 
special meeting, (B) Budget Amendments #127-135, (C) Fireworks Permit for 
Parties by Design, (D) Macon County 2025 Holiday Schedule, (E) Franklin 
Chamber Service Contract for FY24-25, (F) Highlands Chamber Service Contract 
for FY24-25, (G) Approval of a partial refund of 2023 taxes for Vineyards and 
Villas, LLC, (H) Tax releases for the month of November 2024 in the amount of 
$2,520.12, (I) Monthly ad valorem tax collection report for which no action is 
necessary.   
 
APPOINTMENTS:  None 

 
CLOSED SESSION:  None 
 

 ADJOURN:  With no other business, at 7:15 p.m., upon a motion from 
Commissioner Shearl, seconded by Commissioner Antoine, the board voted 
unanimously to adjourn. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________    _____________________________ 
Warren Cabe      Josh Young 
Ex Officio Clerk to the Board    Board Chair 
 
 
 
 
 





















MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
CATEGORY – APPOINTMENTS 

 
 
MEETING DATE:  JANUARY 14, 2025  
 
13A.     Macon County Library Board of Trustees (1 seat) – Macon 
County Librarian Abby Hardison has submitted a request included in your 
packet for the reappointment of Linda Tyler for a second three-year term. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         




